
DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING
Dorr Township Library

Time: June 17, 2024 @ 6:30 pm

Call to Order:

Roll Call:

Changes to the Agenda:

Public Comment & Correspondence:

Approval of the Agenda:

Approval of the Minutes: May 20, 2024

Treasurer’s Report: March, April, May. Credit Card - $3,472.89 for May.

Director’s Report:

Committee Reports:

NEW BUSINESS:
1. Presentation by Stephanie Calhoun, Pres/CEO of ACCF, on establishing an endowment fund
2. Discussion of issues with Custodial Service
3. Discussion of letter from John Tuinstra to Director
4. Quarterly Update on Strategic Plan Implementation
5. Lexi Adrianse presentation on New Logo

OLD BUSINESS:
1. Discussion and Approval of New Logo

Township Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 7 pm.

Adjournment:

Next regular meeting: July 15, 2024 at 6:30 pm

1



DORR TOWNSHIP LIBRARY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

MEETING

Dorr Township Library

Time: May 20, 2024 @ 6:30 pm

MINUTES

Meeting was called to order at 6:32 PM

Pledge of Allegiance: was said.

Roll Call: Present- Jeffrey Babbitt, Brittany Hunter, Carrie Brooks, Bruce Bendull, Michaaael Rydman. Absent, Shana

Dykhuis.

Changes to the Agenda: None

Public Comment & Correspondence: None

Approval of the Minutes: Rydman made a motion to accept the minutes from April 15, 2024, and was seconded by

Brooks. All yes, motion carried.

Treasurer’s Report: Brooks motioned to table the Treasurer’s report reports for March March and April and pay the

credit card. Bendull second. All yes, motion carried.

Director’s Report: Programs continue to be well-attended. Circulation statistics are fairly strong. A People Counter

was installed to assess library patron traffic. Wifi problems were addressed. Director continues to attend various

meetings and trainings.

Committee Reports: None.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Discussion and Approval of Diane Switzer’s End-of-Probation Wage Increase. Director reported that Diane

Switzer has been performing well in her duties. Brooks motioned to raise Switzer’s wages to $11/hr effective next

paycheck. Hunter seconded. All yes, motion carried.

2. Discussion of Director’s Fiscal Year-End 2024 Report. Director reported that 2024’s financial performance was

in-line with prior years.

3. Discussion and Approval of New Logo. Logo was discussed. Brooks made a motion to table the approval until

revisions can be made. Bendull seconded. All yes, Motion carried.

OLD BUSINESS:

2



1. Discussion and approval of new changes to the Financial Policies. Hunter motioned to accept the new

financial policies as written. Rydman seconded. All yes, Motion carried.

Township Board Meeting: June 27, 2024 7 pm. Director Babbitt is scheduled to attend.

Adjournment: Brooks motioned to adjourn at 7:04 PM. Bendull seconded. All yes, motion carried.

Next Regular Meeting: June 17, 2024 at 6:30 pm

3



 Director’s Report, June 17, 2024 

 Library Operation Updates 

 Recent programs have been well attended. We had 447 visitors inside the library during the Summer 

 Reading Kickoff on June 10, according to the new people counter. That does not include anyone who came for 

 the Heroes Show and Tell outside without entering the building. Our guests of honor for the Show and Tell 

 unfortunately had to leave early, and a miscommunication caused us to be down one food truck, but otherwise 

 the Summer Reading Kickoff was a success. Approximately 165 patrons signed up for Summer Reading on 

 the first day. 

 Statistics 

 Statistics are still being updated. According to ILS statistics from Lakeland, our cardholding patron 

 population growth is stronger than it has been at least since before 2019. 

 Budget and Financial Items 

 We have requested the assistance of Dan Veldhuizen from Siegfried Crandall to untangle the mess 

 caused by the recent glitch between the bank and QuickBooks. Reilly has been unable to reconcile the 

 accounts because of this glitch, and we have exhausted the usefulness of QuickBooks support.We are 

 optimistic that the problems can be resolved with some expert assistance. Updating the budget is also behind 

 because of the glitch. 

 Due to lack of patron interest, lack of marketing support, and the availability of similar information from 

 free resources, we have chosen not to renew LinkedIn Learning. We are considering replacing it with Comics 

 Plus for significantly less money. 

 Staff and Building Items 

 The water was tested on June 5. 

 Meetings, Workshops, etc. 

 On May 22, I met with Sara Ruiter from the ACCF over Zoom to pick her brain about marketing to 

 estate planners. Later that day, I met with Jack Verville of United Bank to establish the ICS account. 

 On June 6, I spoke with Roxanne Janszen, Community Connections staff with Salem Township Library, 

 about the extensive information they have on their website for Homeschool Resources. 

4



 After months of communication issues, on June 12, I met over Zoom with Zack Becker of Demco to get 

 the space audit moving again. 

 Reilly and I met with Alex Burnsides and Beth Halaz from Library Pass on June 13 to explore adding 

 Comics Plus to our databases. I also met with John Tuinstra on June 13 to discuss his concerns with a recent 

 Facebook post of ours. 

 The Lakeland Library Coop Board and Advisory Council meetings for June were canceled for lack of 

 agenda items. 

 Volunteers 

 Mason Drodz is currently doing volunteer work in the library. 

 Library Closings 

 We were closed May 25 and 27 for Memorial Day weekend. 

 Completed June 14, 2024, at 12:52 PM. 

5



Dorr Library Endowment Fund

Good Monday Jeffrey,

Hope this message finds you well. I'm following up on your interest in talking with your Board about opening up an
endowment fund for the Dorr library here at the Allegan County Community Founda�on. Here are some good
resources/informa�on to share with them:

This webpage is helpful - h�ps://alleganfounda�on.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-
endowment/

When an agency opens a fund with the ACCF, we actually open two funds (IRS regula�ons). The funds would operate
basically the same - invested the same, same admin fee (1.5% per year), same spending policy, and yearly
distribu�ons.

*An Agency Fund would be opened with the money from the LIBRARY. Future funding/dona�ons could
only come from the LIBRARY. On the IRS 990 - this shows up as an asset for the LIBRARY and a liability for
ACCF. Goal for opening an agency fund is $10k in 4 years.

*A Designated Fund would be opened to accept dona�ons from donors (not the LIBRARY). This fund is the
forward facing one that we market for addi�onal people that may want to donate in the future and/or
include in a planned gi�. On the IRS 990 this shows up only as an asset to ACCF. Goal for opening an
agency fund is $10k in 4 years.

I talked with our President/CEO and she would be happy to a�end your mee�ng to answer any
specific/technical ques�ons if that would be helpful to you!

Let me know if you have any addi�onal ques�ons.

Best,
Sara

Mon, 10 Jun 2024 10:38:32 AM -0400

To "jeffrey.b@dorrlibrary.org"<jeffrey.b@dorrlibrary.org>

Cc "Sara Ruiter"<Sruiter@alleganfoundation.org>

SR
Sara Ruiter <sruiter@alleganfoundation.org>

6/10/24, 10:52 AM Dorr Library Endowment Fund

about:blank 1/2
6

https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/
https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/


6/10/24, 10:52 AM Dorr Library Endowment Fund

about:blank 2/2
7



How to
Establ ish  An
Endowment

Home / Non-Profits / Non-Profit Sustainability / How to Establish An Endowment

First, with your board, discuss if  establishing an endowment is right for your

organization. You must be prepared to promote your endowment (as will the

Foundation) and develop a plan to fund it. If  you don’t plan to fund it, you may

redirect donations to establish and endowment that may be too small to ever do

you any good. You will miss the impact of  the funds used to establish the

endowment and the potential of  the endowment will never come to fruition.

 

COMMUNITY CALENDAR DONORS ADVISORS

NON-PROFITS SCHOLARSHIPS PROGRAMS

ABOUT US DONATE NOW 

6/10/24, 10:44 AM How to Establish An Endowment - Allegan County Community Foundation

https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/ 1/4
8

https://alleganfoundation.org/
https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/
https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/
https://www.facebook.com/AlleganCountyCommunityFoundation/
https://www.instagram.com/alleganfoundation/
https://alleganfoundation.org/
https://alleganfoundation.org/community-calendar/
https://alleganfoundation.org/donors/
https://alleganfoundation.org/advisors/
https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/
https://alleganfoundation.org/scholarships/
https://alleganfoundation.org/programs/
https://alleganfoundation.org/accf/
https://allegan.fcsuite.com/erp/donate/list


It is a strategy that needs careful planning and forethought. We can help with

that.

Once you decide to establish an endowment, we can really get to work helping it

grow. As it grows, we provide routine accounting statements, along with details

on each donation received.

Other assistance we can provide:

Development of  endowment brochures (the first 100 are free of  charge)

Development of  donation envelopes (the first 100 are free of  charge)

Creation of  a fund page on the ACCF website – complete with its own

donate button! See some examples of  donor fund pages here.

Promotion via media releases, the Non-Profit Spotlight, social media and

speaking engagements

With ever-changing board membership, we are happy to come out and

discuss your endowment to new ambassadors of  your organization.

We can process complex gifts – real estate, stocks, bonds, art work, etc.

Other benefits:

Your organization’s assets are pooled with the Foundation’s assets. This

practice allows for greater efficiency and protection against fluctuations in

6/10/24, 10:44 AM How to Establish An Endowment - Allegan County Community Foundation

https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/ 2/4
9

https://allegan.fcsuite.com/erp/donate/list


market value, as well as enhanced earning power. All assets are under the

oversight of  experienced, professional investment managers.

Participation in special giving days

Participation in professional development opportunities

Indirect access to the Foundation’s donors

Over time, earnings from your endowment will provide a steady stream of

resources, enabling your nonprofit organization to accumulate funds for renewal

and enhancements of  facilities and equipment, carry out long-term planning,

respond effectively to unmet needs, or meet any unexpected shortfalls in normal

operating support that occurs from time to time.

Each year, a portion of  the investment earnings is available for your nonprofit

organization to use to meet your ever-changing needs. However, if  an individual

donor wishes to direct his or her endowment gift to a particular purpose, it is

possible to do so within the Community Foundation. Any restrictions on a gift

should be discussed with both the Community Foundation and your

organization to ensure the donor’s wishes can be carried out.

Call us to start the conversation. It is never to early to plan for the future.

Allegan County

Community CONFIRMED IN
COMPLIANCE

6/10/24, 10:44 AM How to Establish An Endowment - Allegan County Community Foundation

https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/ 3/4
10



Foundation

112 Locust St,

Allegan, MI

49010

Phone.

269.673.8344

WITH NATIONAL
STANDARDS FOR
U.S. COMMUNITY

FOUNDATIONS

© Copyright 2019 -  2024 ALLEGAN COUNTY COMMUNITY FOUNDATION. DESIGN BY

JABBERDESIGN    |     ALL RIGHTS RESERVED    |     POWERED BY WORDPRESS

 

6/10/24, 10:44 AM How to Establish An Endowment - Allegan County Community Foundation

https://alleganfoundation.org/non-profits/non-profit-sustainability/how-to-establish-an-endowment/ 4/4
11

https://alleganfoundation.org/
https://alleganfoundation.org/
https://www.cof.org/national-standards-us-community-foundations?ItemNumber=16103&navItemNumber=15626
https://www.cof.org/national-standards-us-community-foundations?ItemNumber=16103&navItemNumber=15626
https://jabberdesign.com/
http://wordpress.org/
https://www.facebook.com/AlleganCountyCommunityFoundation/
https://www.instagram.com/alleganfoundation/


12



13



14



15



16



17



Dorr Library: Objectives & Action Steps reporting Secure financial future

Objective Description Responsible Staff Target Date Reporting Date Progress/Notes
Objective 1: By 12/31/24 staff and/or volunteers will have participated with 3-5 community events or
groups.

Director, Asst.
Director, All Staff

12/31/2024 1/15/2025

Objective 2: By 12/31/26 40% of the community will have library cards. Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian, All Staff

12/31/2026 1/18/2027

Objective 3: By 12/31/26 $30,000 in grants for services will be secured. Director, Asst.
Director

12/31/2026 1/18/2027

AS 1: List 10-15 community events occurring in 2024 with dates, times, locations, and contact
information as accurately as possible.

Director with All Staff 2/1/2024 2/19/2024 Done. Dorr Elementary Y5/K Roundup,
Sycamore Elementary Family Literacy Night,
DBA Easter Egg Hunt, Dorr Fourth, Dairy
Ranch Mother's Day, WurstFest, Leppinks
Cookout, Hallowed Halls, Dairy Ranch
Halloween, Dorr Elementary Family Reading
Night

AS 2: Create Staffing Plan for each event. If unable to staff with at least 2 staff members or
volunteers, remove event from the list for this year. What remains will be the Final List.

Director 2/22/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Jeffrey and Reilly for Y5/K, Reilly and
Megan Helms for Sycamore El Literacy
Night, Reilly and 1-2 others for Hallowed
Halls

AS 3: Contact persons responsible for each event in the Final List to ask if there is a way for library
to participate.

Director, Asst.
Director

3/15/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Have done outreach at Dorr El Y5/K
Roundup, Sycamore El Family Literacy
Night, Mother's Day Artisan Market. Planning
on Independence Day Artisan Market, Labor
Day Artisan Market, Hallowed Halls.

AS 1: Contact Lakeland re: when the next purge takes place. Director 1/30/2024 2/19/2024 Done. August 2024 should be the next purge
AS 2: Work with the DBA to develop an effective way to reach out to new residents with a Welcome
Basket or packet.

Director 4/17/2024 6/17/2024 Still discussing as of 6/6

AS 3: Create and/or assemble material for new resident packets. All Staff 4/30/2024 6/17/2024 Have touched on with staff. May roll some
ideas in with bulk mailing in fall.

AS 4: Create evaluation plan for measuring effectiveness of new resident packets. Director, Asst.
Director

5/1/2024 6/17/2024 No progress.

AS 5: Create marketing plan to encourage library card registration and use. Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian

9/1/2024 9/16/2024 Planning bulk mailing. September is Library
Card Sign-Up Month, a good month to
incorporate and launch the marketing
campaign.

AS 1: Identify 5 grants due in 2024 relevant to the library's mission and for which the library is
qualified.

Director, Asst.
Director

9/1/2024 9/16/2024 Dollar General and LSTA capital grant or
T-Mobile Hometown grant?, corporate grants
with Steelcase (need to inquire late June),
Perrigo (May-July for Excel, Aug-Oct for
Seed Library).

AS 2: Apply for 2-5 of those grants.
Director, Asst.
Director

11/30/2024 12/9/2024 Dollar General (did not win), Reilly working
on LSTA ot T-Mobile?, Jeffrey working on
Perrigo

AS 3: Evaluate grant application process to improve chances for success the next year. Director, Asst.
Director

12/31/2024 3/17/2025

18



Dorr Library: Objectives & Action Steps reporting Form alliances

Objective Description Responsible Staff Target Date Reporting Date Progress/Notes
Objective 1: By 12/31/2024, the library will have successfully bartered with 2 organizations for space for

library programs and/or services.
Director, All Staff 12/31/2024 1/15/2025

Objective 2: By 12/31/2025, the library will have successfully bartered with 3 organizations or personal
estates for recurring revenue.

Director, Asst.
Director,
Marketing
Librarian, All Staff

12/31/2025 1/19/2026

Objective 3: By 12/31/2025, 5 allied organizations will have promoted the library in their activities and/or
public information.

12/31/2025

AS 1: Identify 5-8 local organizations with space that could be useful to the library. Director with All
Staff

2/29/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Dorr Elementary, Studio 18, OMG,
Parks, Jeff Miling's backyard

AS 2: Develop a short sketch of a plan of use for each space held by the 5-8 local organizations,
including name and nature of program, approximate dates and times, and staffing.

Director with All
Staff

3/31/2024 6/17/2024 Have begun to discuss programs suited to
each space

AS 3: List 1-3 items or services of value the library could offer each organization in exchange for
space.

Director with All
Staff

5/15/2024 6/17/2024 Done. Advertising for OMG. Dorr El & parks
wouldn't require, promotion on marketing
materials, promotion ondigital sign

AS 4: Contact a decision-maker in 2-8 of those organizations regarding the use of space. Director 9/1/2024 9/16/2024 Done. Dorr El 95% sure for Aug 29. OMG
interested but no details yet.

AS 1: Identify 10-15 local, county, and regional organizations and estates that could feasibly help fund
the library.

Director with All
Staff

3/15/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Allegan Co, ACCF, DGLF, Library of
Michigan, DBA, Legacy Legal (and other
estate planners for bequests), Spartan Nash,
Kellogg, Steelcase, Perrigo, Dematic, etc.

AS 2: Develop a short sketch of a pitch for each organization or estate, focusing on how the library
would use their funds to further their mission and goals.

Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian

4/30/2024 6/17/2024 Done. Pitches written or mentally sketched
for ACCF, SpartanNash, Kellogg, Steelcase,
Perrigo; delivered to DGLF, DBA, Legacy
Legal

AS 3: Contact a decision-maker in 3-10 of those organizations or estates regarding funding library
programs and services.

Director 9/1/2024 9/16/2024 Done. Contacted ACCF, SpartanNash,
Kellogg, Steelcase, Perrigo, DGLF, DBA,
Legacy Legal

AS 1: Identify 15-20 local organizations and businesses that could help promote the library. Director with All
Staff

3/15/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Wayland Union, Hopkins Schools,
HSB, Allegan Help Me Grow, Township
(sign), Project Hope, American Legion,
Moose Lodge, DBA, OMG, Bell's, Leppinks,
Curious Minds, Lameyer Plumbing, Biggby of
Dorr

AS 2: Develop marketing ideas that would work for each organization or business. Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian

5/15/2024 6/17/2024 Developing text ad to run with HSB, 1/8 or
1/4 page ads for yearbooks at Wayland and
Hopkins, on Township sign, will develop
program-specific flyers for businesses

AS 3: List 1-3 items or services of value the library could offer each organization in exchange for
promotion.

Director with All
Staff

5/15/2024 6/17/2024 Done. Fee (HSB, yearbooks), mutual
promotion (Help Me Grow, Biggby), no
exchange needed (Township, Bell's,
Leppink's, Curious Minds), promotion on
digital sign is possible

AS 4: Contact a decision-maker in 5-12 of those organizations regarding promotion of the library. Director 10/1/2024 12/9/2024 Done. Marketing in place with Wayland
Union, Help Me Grow, Township; working on
HSB; relationships established with Bell's,
Leppink's, Curious Minds

19



Dorr Library: Objectives & Action Steps reporting Engage people

Objective Description Responsible
Staff

Target Date Reporting Date Progress/Notes

Objective 1: By 12/31/24 staff and/or volunteers will have participated in a minimum of 3 community
events hosted by other organizations.

Director, All Staff 12/31/2024 1/15/2025

Objective 2: By 5/31/25 the library will have published its first Annual Report (for Fiscal Year Ending
2025), detailing our successes in the previous year and our importance to the community.

Director, Asst.
Director,
Marketing
Librarian, All
Staff

5/1/2025 5/19/2025

Objective 3: By 12/31/25 the library will have helped the Friends of Dorr Township Library increase their
membership by 50%.

Director, Asst.
Director,
Marketing
Librarian, All
Staff, Friends

12/31/2025 1/18/2027

AS 1: Test Popup Library equipment to record procedures and problem-solve performance issues
prior to live use.

Director 3/15/2024 3/18/2024 Done. All tested

AS 2: List 10-15 community events occurring in 2024 with dates, times, locations, and contact
information as accurately as possible.

Director with All
Staff

2/1/2024 2/19/2024 Done. See 1.1.1

AS 3: Create Staffing Plan for each event. If unable to staff with at least 2 staff members or
volunteers, remove event from the list for this year. What remains will be the Final List.

Director with All
Staff

2/22/2024 3/18/2024 Done. See 1.1.2

AS 4: Contact persons responsible for each event in the Final List to ask if there is a way for library
to participate.

Director 3/15/2024 3/18/2024 Done. See 1.1.3

AS 1: Identify statistics the library would like to feature in the Annual Report and develop accurate
ways to track and record them.

Director with All
Staff

3/1/2024 3/18/2024 Done. Requests made and filled, patron
count, active patrons, visitors, computer
usage, program attendance

AS 2: Identify 5-10 events, staff members, volunteers, and other items the library might want to
feature in the Annual Report.

Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian, All Staff

5/1/2024 6/17/2024 Done. Lexi willing to be photo'd,
Friends/Megan Helms, Summer Reading,
Fall Fest, Winter Craft Bazaar

AS 3: Create or find a design for the Annual Report. Director, Asst.
Director, Marketing
Librarian

12/31/2024 3/17/2025

AS 4: Determine the most cost-effective printing and distribution options for the Annual Report,
including how many to print and how to distribute.

Director, Asst.
Director

12/31/2024 3/17/2025

AS 1: Establish current baseline number of Friends membership Director 1/31/2024 2/19/2024 Done. 37 on email list, 9 active volunteers,
several advocate in person and online

AS 2: Work with Friends to make a marketing plan to encourage membership Director with All
Staff, Friends

3/31/2024 6/17/2024 Done. Programs sponsored by, Friends at
outreach, materials will be included in
outreach material

AS 3: Create or update literature to include in new resident packets Director, Marketing
Librarian, Friends

4/30/2024 6/17/2024

20



F O N T S

M O O D B O A R D  I N S P I R A T I O N

C O L O R  P A L E T T E

Brightwall

#1F271B #19647E #28AFB0 #F4D35E #EE964B

a b c d e f g h i j k l m n o p q r s t
u v w x y z

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
Lo

go S
trategic IDDorr Library

W E  C O N N E C T  Y O U

Droid Seref Anaphora

a b c d e f g h i j k l m n o p q r s t
u v w x y z

a b c d e f g h i j k l m n o p q r s t
u v w x y z

DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y

DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y

21



DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y

DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y Dorr Library

W E  C O N N E C T  Y O U

DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y

DORR
T O W N S H I P  L I B R A R Y

Dorr Library
W E  C O N N E C T  Y O U

22


	Agenda06172024.pdf
	Minutes20240520.pdf
	06 June Director's report.pdf
	Dorr Library Endowment Fund.pdf
	How to Establish An Endowment - Allegan County Community Foundation.pdf
	Letter-from-John-Tuinstra_20240611.pdf
	Dorr Library_ Objectives & Action Steps reporting.pdf
	Dorr Township Library Branding Guide (1).pdf



